ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 17, 2003
1:35 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senat or CGene Therri aul t
Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senat or Hollis French

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Scott Ogan, Vice Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

Confirmati on Hearing:

Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board - LeRoy Barker
CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

SENATE BILL NO. 2
"An Act relating to recovery of civil danages from the parents
or legal guardian of a mnor; and providing for an effective
date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 49
"An Act making corrective anendnents to the Al aska Statutes as
recoomended by the revisor of statutes; and providing for an
effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BILL NO 68
"An Act relating to the office of victins' rights."
MOVED CSHB 68(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

Confirmation Hearing: Violent Crines Conpensation Board
See Senate Judiciary m nutes dated 3/5/03.

SB 2 - See Health Education and Social Services mnutes dated
2/ 24/ 03.

SB 49 - See State Affairs mnutes dated 2/20/03.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 17, 2003



HB 68 - See Community and Regional Affairs m nutes dated
2/ 26/ 03.

W TNESS REG STER

M. LeRoy J. Barker

1400 W Benson Boul evard, Suite 315

Anchor age, AK 99503

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conferee, Violent Crinmes Conpensati on Board

M. Wes Kel ler

Staff for Senator Fred Dyson

Room 121, State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 2

Ms. Joanne G bbens

Program Adm ni strator,

Division of Fami|ly and Youth Services

P. 0. Box 110630

Juneau, AK 99811-0630

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on SB 2.

M. Tim Steele

Vi ce President and Legislative Chair,
Anchor age School Board

P. 0. Box 196650

Anchorage, AK 99519

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 2

Ms. Pam Fi ndl ey

Revi sor of Statutes,

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Servi ces,
State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 49

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s

Room 412, State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor HB 68
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-8, SIDE A

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 17, 2003



CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:35 p.m Present were Senators
French, Therriault and Chair Seekins. Senator Ellis arrived at
1:42 p. m

The first order of business to cone before the commttee was SB
2.

SB  2-PARENT LIABILITY FOR DAVAGE BY CH LD

CHAIR SEEKINS invited M. Ws Keller to introduce SB 2. He
explained that a blank commttee substitute (CS) was in nenbers'
packets. There was no objection stated and work draft SB 2
version \I was before the conmttee as the working docunent.

MR. KELLER, staff for Senator Fred Dyson, testified that the
core purpose of SB 2 is to renobve the $10 thousand limt on the
anount that can be recovered from parents when a mnor child

intentionally destroys property or commts vandalism The
Al aska Association of School Boards and the Anchorage School
District support SB 2. The legislation was introduced as a

result of damage that occurred in Anchorage that was |ess than
$1 million, but considerably nore than $10 thousand.

During hearings on the House version of this bill, and during
the previous Senate hearing, there was discussion that raised
the question of whether it was nore appropriate to raise the

limt rather than elimnate it. The sponsor wants to renove the
limt conpletely so when damage occurs the mnor can be held
|iable for the actual cost of the damage. If the state renoves

responsibility fromthe parents, and then if the state does not
take the responsibility for the danage, the cost gets passed to
the victim That is not appropriate nor is it appropriate for
the state to assune that kind of parental responsibility.

MR. KELLER assured the conmittee that this does not nean that if
there is $1 mllion in damge done that $1 mllion has to be
col | ect ed. The judge may consider mtigating circunstances and
the situation could be worked out in court. There are |aws
i nvol ving bankruptcy protection so a parent wouldn't be ruined
because of a child's actions.

MR. KELLER explained the CS before the commttee canme about due
to an inconsistency in the |aw. Section 13.26.070 states the
guardian of a mnor is not liable for the action of the child.
Yet, legal guardians are held responsible for the actions of a
m nor in Section 34.50.020. The intent of the CS is to renove

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 17, 2003



the legal guardian |anguage to nake the two |aws consistent.
This is consistent with how the Division of Famly and Youth
Services (DFYS) is doing business and page 25 of the Al aska
Foster Parent Handbook explains that the state carries liability
insurance to cover foster parents if a foster child causes
damage.

MR. KELLER said an additional anendnent is being suggested
because several Senators noted that the child is left harnmnl ess.
They asked about recovery from the child s permanent fund or
ot her assets. The Departnent of Law determned that if damage
is done, there is no protection of the <child s assets.
Typically, going after a child s assets isn't done because the
revenue per year is small conpared to |egal costs. Amendmnent
\1.1 would require the victim to get a judgnent on the child
before seeking the assets of the parent.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how nuch liability insurance the state
carries for foster parents.

M5. JOANNE GBBENS, Division of Famly and Youth Services,
program admnistrator didn't know, but offered to get the
i nformation. She said she did know that the state indemifies
foster parents against any physical harm a child mght do to
anot her individual .

SENATOR FRENCH said, “But you don’t know the anount, it could be
$5 thousand it could be $1 nmillion.”

MS. G BBENS agr eed.

SENATOR FRENCH said he wanted to be crystal clear on the
anendnent because there were markings on it. He pointed out
that the CS before the conmmttee is \I version and not \Il.1
ver si on. He referred to Section 34.50.020 where subsection (d)
contai ned handwiting. He asked if this exenpts |egal guardi ans
or adoptive parents fromliability.

MR. KELLER explained the un-anended Section 3 is neant to
address adoptive parents that are receiving a state subsidy for
adopting a hard to place child. The goal is to hold adoptive
parents harm ess when an ol der child is adopted.

The anendnent adds a new Section 2, and allows recovery of

damages only after the person bringing a civil action has first
obt ai ned a judgnent against the child s assets.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 17, 2003



CHAIR SEEKI NS asked if there was a notion on the anendment.
SENATOR FRENCH asked if the anendment was \I. 1.
CHAI R SEEKI NS said that was correct.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the prime sponsor of the bil
brought the amendnent to the conmttee.

MR KELLER said that was correct.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if it clarifies that people can't go
after the assets of the legal guardians until a judgnment on the
child is attained.

MR. KELLER clarified it is actually the assets of the parents.
The intent of the amendnent is to put the child s assets on the
line first.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the original bill and the CS exenpt
| egal guardi ans.

MR. KELLER said the original |anguage that exists in |aw exenpts
| egal guardi ans.

SENATOR FRENCH asked whet her the CS maintains that exenption.

MR. KELLER said yes. The termnology on legal guardians is
being renoved because it is confusing in both |laws before the
comittee.

SENATOR FRENCH asked himto explain it fromthe beginning.

MR. KELLER referred to the handout containing Sec. 13.26.070 and
Sec. 34.50.020. He said Sec. 13.26.070 says the guardian is not
liable to third persons, by reason of the parental relationship,
for the acts of the ward or the acts of the child. Current Sec
34.50.020 |anguage allows recovery of damges from the |[egal
guardi an. The CS goes way beyond the purpose of the bill, which
is to get rid of the cap on the liability. The CS fixes this
section of law to reflect both what the departnent is doing and
what is reflected in other parts of the |aw

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the reform is to keep foster parents
| iable or not |iable.

MR. KELLER answered not |i able.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 17, 2003



SENATOR FRENCH reiterated that foster parents are not liable for
t he danmage of their charges.

MR. KELLER said that is correct.
CHAIR SEEKINS read from page 2, line 19, (B). “The adoptive

parents of an unemancipated mnor if the adoptive parents are
receiving financial assistance from the state as a result of

that adoption.” He asked if children suffering from fetal
al cohol syndrome  ( FAS) are normally adopted under this
provi si on.

M5. G BBENS answered yes. There are federal guidelines for what
constitutes a special needs child for the purposes of adoption
and being eligible for an adoption subsidy. Because fetal
al cohol syndrome children have a lot of conplicated nmedical and
or behavioral issues, they would qualify as a child that would
be eligible for a subsidy.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said this bill is an attenpt to get these two
sections of statutes to jive. He said he worked on the
| egi slation when the cap was raised from $2 thousand to $10
t housand and was trying to refresh his nenory on the things that
were brought up at that tine.

He asked whether he would be exenpt if his sister was
i ncapacitated or had died and he was acting in the capacity of
| egal guardian for his nephew, but hadn’'t gone through the
adoption process and wasn’t paid by the state.

MR. KELLER replied, as he wunderstood it, Senator Therriault
woul d be exenpt if he has the legal position of being guardian
of the child. The legal guardian of the child, guardian ad
litemor foster parent would be held harm ess.

CHAI R SEEKI NS added Sec. 13.26.070 exenpts Senator Therriault as
a legal guardian. This section is kind of a Revisor’s bill and
would renove blame from a |egal guardian. A legal guardian
would not be responsible, only the blood parent would be
responsi bl e.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if Sec. 13.26.070 is applicable in al

guardi anship relationships or was that a specific section of
statute that dealt with state foster parent situations.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 17, 2003



MR. KELLER said it is a clunmsily placed section of |aw under
children and adults wth disabilities. The pure straight
| anguage of the bill looks like there is an obvious conflict.
The Departnment of Health and Social Services (HESS) referred
them to the section and they presuned that foster parents and
| egal guardians were not |iable. He checked a court rule that
found guardians ad litem are not held responsible. He said that
was not a very good answer. He didn't think that section of
| aw, Sec. 13.26.070, would be a problem in court. As far as
DFYS knew, it had not been tested

CHAIR SEEKINS told Senator Therriault they could request an
opinion fromthe Departnent of Law and hol d anot her heari ng.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he was trying to figure out the policy
call. The state has children in foster hones and wants to pl ace
them in a good setting. The state wants loving adults to take
those children and doesn't want those adults to have the risk of
taking in a troubled teen that mght break out the neighbor’s
w ndow and place the adult’s assets at risk.

SENATOR THERRI AULT then posed a scenario in which he took his
nephew under guardianship for nost of his life and let him
conpletely run amuck. He was acting as a parent in every sense
of the word and asked if he should be conpletely exenpt because
he is not the parent. Sone discussions on that type of scenario
occurred when this legislation was dealt with in the past. He
said he was trying to figure out the sensible policy call.

1: 55 pm

SENATOR FRENCH understood there is an insurance policy that
covers foster parents. If an individual takes in this troubled
youth and he or she goes next door and breaks out the neighbor’s
wi ndows then the individual’s assets are not at risk because of
the insurance policy. He asked if the insurance policy no
| onger applies if the individual subsequently adopts that foster
child.

MR. KELLER said, as he understands this |egislation, the answer
is yes. If a child is adopted, the parental responsibility is
taken over conpletely. The adoptive parent assunmes the
liability for the actions of the adopted child unless it is a
subsi di zed adoption, which would be an adoption of sonmebody that
is hard to pl ace.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 17, 2003



SENATOR FRENCH asked if that is addressed in the proposed
| egislation or is that the way the current |aw reads. He read
that Sec. 34.50.020 subsection (a), does not authorize recovery
of danmages from the adoptive parents of an unenanci pated m nor
if the adoptive parents are receiving financial assistance from
the state as a result of the adoption. He asked if that was the
section.

MR. KELLER said yes, that is the section; it is a new subsection
and that is our wording.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if this would cover any adoption where the
parents are getting public funds. For exanple, food stanps or
ATAP (Al aska Tenporary Assistance Progran) or anything else |ike
t hat .

MR. KELLER answered that was not the intent.

SENATOR FRENCH noted the intent is to hold harmless only those
peopl e who adopted and are getting financial assistance as a
result of the adoption. He questioned why that is a special
cat egory.

MR. KELLER said it is a special category because they do not
want to discourage loving adults from taking on difficult to
pl ace children. The intent is to hold those adults harnl ess.

CHAIR SEEKINS said it is not uncommon for an FAS child to reach
puberty and to devel op aberrant behavior. It mght be very
difficult for the child to tell right fromwong. Soneone night
be discouraged from trying to help that child if they had to
assune that kind of liability. He said he could understand why
that provision mght be there.

SENATOR THERRI AULT questioned whether this bill provides access
to a state insurance policy for a state placenent |egal
guar di anship where the child does damage.

MR. KELLER said he did not know. He thought the policy m ght be
directed just at foster parents. He said it is addressed in the
foster parent handbook, but he did not know how broad that
policy is.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Ms. G bbens if she knew the answer.

M5. G BBENS said she understands there is access to a state
i nsurance policy, but she would verify that. Sec. 34.50.020 (b)

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 17, 2003



currently holds foster parents harmess for any danmage a child
causes. The indemification that the state provides for foster
parents is for any personal injury that a foster child mght do
to another individual. It mght not cover any potential
property danmge. However, according to regulation, t he
departnment does pay foster parents up to $5 thousand for any
damage that a child nmay cause.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if that would be paid to the foster parents
or to anyone.

M5. G BBENS gave and exanple where the child went next door and
broke a w ndow. The division would give funds to that foster
parent to help pay for the window repair. She said she did not
believe there was any relationship there in ternms of |egal
guardian. She thought it was just for foster parents but would
get that clarified fromrisk nmanagenent.

CHAIR SEEKINS referred to the case Senator Therriault talked
about where he took over as the legal guardian of his nephew
If the nephew was a rascal, Senator Therriault mght not be so
inclined to be the guardian. Unless there was sone exenption on
Senator Therriault’s behalf, the nephew mght end up in the
state foster care program He said he could see why the state
mght try to keep that child in the famly rather than nake the
child a ward of the state.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he could understand that, but you don’'t
really care if you are the person whose house was burned down,
car was stolen or cat was kill ed.

2:02 pm

CHAIR SEEKINS said that is a concern that probably should be
addressed as they |look to see where the risk and reward is. An
i ndi vidual could say the child is not his child and exercise no
restraint on the activities of the mnor, which is not good for
society either.

SENATOR ELLI S asked the Chair for his plan for the bill

CHAIR SEEKINS said the commttee would hear the bill a second
time after receiving sone clarification from DFYS.

MR TIM STEELE, Vice President and Legislative Chair of the
Anchorage School Board, testified in support of SB 2. He didn't

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 17, 2003



believe the board would have any problens wth the proposed
anendnent, but he would take it back for themto review

Damage recovery is one of the Anchorage School Board’ s
priorities. The school district is in need of financial help
due to vandalism and they support this legislation as a
deterrent. The Anchorage School Board is self-insured after the
first $1 mllion and they typically budget about $250 thousand
annual ly to clean up, replace and repair damage.

MR. STEELE expl ai ned the Anchorage School District suffered from
a nunber of high profile cases in a little over a year. They
went over the $1 million Ilimt and have been unable to collect.
The parents and children assuned the liability in one case at
Chugi ak El enentary School where there was significant danmage.
They perforned comrunity service and accepted responsibility.
On the other side of the coin, there was significant danage at
the mai ntenance yard south of town. Vandal s got into the yard,

took a tractor and ran it into machinery and buildings. The
tractor was destroyed and there was significant damge to
bui I di ngs. They also broke all the windows out of all of the
vehi cl es.

MR. STEELE reported 64 buses in Eagle River had their brake
| ines cut today. That liability is not the Anchorage School
District’s because they are contractor buses. There m ght have
been sonme very significant liability had the brake |ines not
been conpletely severed. As it was, the brake failures occurred
while in the yard rather than on the road. There was no bus
transportation in the Eagle R ver area this norning and parents
had to get their children to school as best they could.

MR. STEELE concluded there is a lot of ancillary cost wth
vandal i sm The Anchorage School Board feels SB 2 would help
them seek restitution and would al so provide a deterrent. There
is a lot of cost for the Anchorage Minicipality and for police
enf orcenent . There is a lot of cost for parents in this bus
case where they had to take extra effort and tine to get their
kids to school. The Anchorage School Board does not want to see
the good kids of Anchorage have to subsidize those very few that
don’t accept responsibility. They are in favor of the
| egi sl ati on and hope the Judiciary Commttee noves the bill

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Keller to have the proposed anmendnent

incorporated into the \I version CS and the conmttee would
address it at a future neeting.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 17, 2003



SB 2 was held in comm ttee.

SB 49-2003 REVISCR S BI LL

M5. PAM FI NDLEY, Revisor of Statutes with the Legislative Lega
and Research Services, informed commttee nenbers SB 49 is a
clean up bill where the policies were determned by earlier
Legi slatures, but the wording was not right for one reason or
anot her or where nanmes of boards changed. She noted this bill
shoul d not affect policy and a sectional analysis was provided.

SENATOR ELLI'S said he appreciated her good work, professionalism
and attention to detail in keeping the Legislature out of
troubl e. He said if Senator Halford and others were here, they
would ask if there is anything even bordering on policy or
substanti ve i npact.

MS. FI NDLEY answered no. She directed everyone's attention to
Section 27, page 10 where the explanation goes on for severa
pages. Two anendnents happened the sane year to the sane
section. This involved loans and there is a limt on these
| oans. The anendnents were put together in the sane statute and
they don't work together very well. SB 49 attenpts to keep the
two acts separate. She was told what is in the Revisor’s bill
is the way the departnent has been executing the law so there
should not be any change on the ground. This is the nopbst
substantive because it does involve two anendnents. She feels
confortable the policy choice was nade because in one of those
subsections it is clear that another one is being accepted. The
whol e expl anation nust be read to understand it because it is
conpl i cat ed. That is the only section she westled with and
came to the conclusion the Legislature’s policy was clear enough
for her to put that in this bill

SENATOR THERRI AULT read the bottom of page 5 on the sectional

anal ysi s. This section amends to nmeke it clear that the two
$300, 000 caps operate separately. If the Legislature disagrees
with my interpretation, this section could be renoved. He asked
if Chair Seekins intended to nove the bill at this tine.

CHAIR SEEKINS replied he wanted the bill introduced and then
allow time to go through it in nore detail, work out any
questions and bring the bill back at a second hearing to

finalize it.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted he would Ilike to get a conplete
understanding before it is noved fromconmttee.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 17, 2003



MS. FINDLEY confirned it is conplicated.

CHAIR SEEKINS announced that the Judiciary Committee is not
going to nove legislation out in the first hearing unless it is
sonething relatively m nor.

SB 49 was held in committee.

CSHB 68(JUD) - OFFI CE CF VICTIMS RIGHTS: | NCLUDE MUNI S

SENATOR THERRI AULT made a notion to adopt CSHB 68 (JUD) as the
wor ki ng docunment. There being no objection, the notion carried.

REPRESENTATI VE RALPH SAMJELS, bill sponsor, explained CSHB
68(JUD) is a clarification of the |language of the 22nd
Legislature in the creation of the Ofice of Victins® Rights
(OVR). The OVR was created in an effort to give victins of
crinme an independent voice in the crimnal justice system
Essentially the OVR is an onbudsman; they have the power to
coll ect data and issue reports to the appropriate body.

A situation arose because of the tragic shooting of formner

Comm ssioner G enn CGodfrey and his wife Patti in Anchorage. A
war of words and attorneys ensued over whether or not the OVR
had jurisdiction within a nunicipality. The municipality said

the OVR had no jurisdiction because the word nunicipality was
not specifically in the statute. That was despite the fact that
55 percent of the people live in the nunicipality and therefore

55 percent of the crinme victins are in the nunicipality. The
OVR office is located within the Minicipality of Anchorage.
This bill merely adds the word nunicipality. The Anchor age

Assenbly has passed an ordinance that agrees wth this
| egislation and the Myor of Anchorage has also agreed.
"Everybody has kissed and nade up now and the bill is noving
forward."

SENATOR ELLIS asked if M. Br anchf | ower requested the
| egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS replied Mayor Wierch requested it and it
was his city attorney who nade the ruling that created the
conflict.

2:15 pm

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 17, 2003



SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if there was anything at the time of
the original act that talked about OVR being specifically for
the state entities or just the opposite.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said there was no specific discussion for
state entities. He said when he read through the mnutes of the
various hearings and talked to Senator Halford, the sponsor, it
was obvious the intent was to include nunicipalities. W t hout
the Anchorage Police Departnent (APD) and the Fairbanks Police
Departnent being included, up to 80 percent of the victins of
crinme are excluded. According to the sponsor, it was an
oversi ght.

SENATOR FRENCH added this would also clear up a potential
conflict if APD investigated a case and forwarded it to the
State District Attorneys’ Ofice where APD is then an arm of the

state agency. Those little disputes are frequent. If the
muni ci pal prosecutor handles the case APD is a nunicipa
or gani zati on. One investigation would be in the hands of OVR

and one would not. He said this is a good idea.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said that's true; particularly with the
muni ci pal prosecutor’s office rather than APD, but this would
i ncl ude both cases.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked about the difference between the
original bill and the CS. He asked if it was just the change in
the title.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS answer ed yes.

SENATOR ELLIS said it was always clear to him and the people who
worked on this |egislation, supported Senator Halford and voted
for it that the intent was to cover everyone. He disagreed with
the Anchorage Municipal Attorney, M. Geene, on nmany occasions
and this opinion was |aughable. He added he was pleased this
was bei ng corrected.

CHAIR SEEKINS observed this is a fairly sinple thing to
acconplish the intent of the original |egislation.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved CSHB 68(JUD) from commttee wth
i ndi vi dual reconmmendations and attached fiscal note. There
bei ng no objection, the notion carri ed.

CONFI RVATI ON_ HEARI NG

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 17, 2003



CHAIR SEEKINS asked if M. Barker was on Iine. He i nforned
commttee nenbers the Governor appointed M. Barker to the
Violent Crines Conpensation Board and his personal record was
available to conmttee nenbers. He asked M. Barker to share
why he would |ike to take this appointnent.

MR LEROY BARKER testified he spent several vyears as a
prosecutor and was interested in the crimnal justice field.
This is one way to serve those people he served as a prosecutor.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved that M. LeRoy Barker’'s nanme be
advanced to the full Senate for consideration. There being no
obj ection the notion carri ed.

SENATOR ELLIS asked if Chair Seekins had nmade any progress on
bringing Ms. Shirley McCoy back before the commttee.

CHAI R SEEKINS responded they checked wth the House to see if
there was a tinme when they could have a joint neeting and
determ ned she would be called in individually.

MR. BRI AN HOVE, staff to the Judiciary Commttee, predicted she
woul d conme before the conmttee within the next 30 days.

There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,
Chair Seekins adjourned the neeting at 2:23 pm

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 17, 2003



